
Table of Contents

 
Agenda 2
Minutes

April 20, 2016 5
Payroll

Payroll/Overtime Report 8
Warrants

Accounts Payable 11
Monthly Investment Report Ending March 31, 2016

Investment Report 24
Appeal of Denial of Conditional Use Permit #16-01, Oriental
Massage Business

Staff Report - CUP Appeal 27
Request by Mr. Mackey Puckett for Consideration of Sales
Pass-Through Agreement

Staff Report - Puckett Request 35
Appointment to Fill Vacant Council Seat

Staff Report - Council Vacancy 39
Participation in the San Joaquin Valley Water Infrastructure
Authority Through Financial Contribution

Staff Report - SJVWIA 49
SJVWIA - JPA 53

1



AGENDA 
KERMAN CITY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING 
Kerman City Hall 

850 S. Madera Avenue 
Wednesday, April 20, 2016 

6:30 PM 
 
 
 

Stephen B. Hill – Mayor 
Gary Yep – Mayor Pro Tem 
Rhonda Armstrong – Council Member 
Bill Nijjer – Council Member  
Vacant – Council Member 

ALL MEETING ATTENDEES ARE ADVISED THAT ALL PAGERS, CELLULAR TELEPHONES AND ANY OTHER 
COMMUNICATION DEVICES SHOULD BE POWERED OFF UPON ENTERING THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 

AS THESE DEVICES INTERFERE WITH OUR AUDIO EQUIPMENT. 
 

OPENING CEREMONIES 
 

• Welcome – Mayor  
• Call to Order 
• Roll Call 
• Invocation 

At this time the Council wishes to provide anyone an opportunity to give a brief invocation or 
inspirational thought. In accordance with law, we would request this opportunity not be used to 
recruit converts, to advance anyone, or to disparage any other faith or belief. If no one steps 
forward, we will observe a moment of silence so that we may all focus our thoughts on how best 
to serve our community. 

 

• Pledge of Allegiance – City Clerk  
 

AGENDA APPROVAL/ADDITIONS/DELETIONS 
 

To accommodate members of the public or convenience in the order of presentation, items on the 
agenda may not be presented or acted upon in the order listed. 

 
1. PRESENTATIONS/CEREMONIAL MATTERS 
 

A. Recognition for Years of Service to Joe Rodriguez and Ruben Prieto (KM) 
 

REQUEST TO ADDRESS COUNCIL 
 

This portion of the meeting is reserved for members of the public to address the Council on items of 
interest that are not on the Agenda and are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Council. 
Speakers shall be limited to three minutes. It is requested that no comments be made during this 
period on items on the Agenda. Members of the public wishing to address the Council on items on the 
Agenda should notify the Mayor when that Agenda item is called, and the Mayor will recognize your 
discussion at that time. It should be noted that the Council is prohibited by law from taking any 
action on matters discussed that are not on the Agenda. Speakers are asked to please use the 
microphone, and provide their name and address. 
 
 

2



2. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

Matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be enacted by one 
motion and one vote. There will be no separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, 
a member of the audience or a Council Member may request an item be removed from the 
Consent Calendar and it will be considered separately. 

 

A. SUBJECT: Minutes 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve minutes as presented. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: April 20, 2016   
 

B. SUBJECT: Payroll 
 
Payroll Report: March 13, 2016 - March 26, 2016: $134,219.23: Retro Pay & Other: 
$37.27; Overtime: $3,620.44; Standby: $988.51; Comp Time Earned: 28.88      
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council approve payroll as presented. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Payroll/Overtime Report 
 

C. SUBJECT: Warrants  
 

1. Nos. 8398-8494 $200,632.93 
2. Excepting - Sebastian:  8426 $2,735.18 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council approve warrants and electronic bank transfers as 
presented. (Pursuant to Government Code 37208) 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Accounts Payable 
 

D. SUBJECT: Monthly Investment Report Ending March 31, 2016 (TJ) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council accept the monthly Investment Report as presented     
 
ATTACHMENTS: Investment Report      
 

3. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
These hearings are scheduled at the time stated and will be heard by the Council as close to 
the time stated as possible. 
 
A. SUBJECT: Appeal of Denial of Conditional Use Permit #16-01, Oriental Massage Business (OP) 

 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends Council by motion adopt resolution denying 
the Planning Commission’s decision and granting the conditional use permit (CUP) #16-
01, Oriental Massage Business located at 275 S. Madera Avenue in the General 
Commercial Zone District. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - CUP Appeal 

3



 
4. DEPARTMENT REPORTS 

 

A. SUBJECT: Request by Mr. Mackey Puckett for Consideration of Sales Pass-Through 
Agreement (OP/DB) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council provide direction to staff as to whether or not the City 
Council would be willing to consider an agreement. Alternatively, staff could be directed 
to review the generic concept of Sales Pass-Through Agreement and develop criteria 
and a policy for consideration by the Council before presenting specific agreements. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - Puckett Request   
 

B. SUBJECT: Appointment to Fill Vacant Council Seat (MR) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt resolution making appointment to fill 
vacancy on the Council created by the resignation of Nathan Fox. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - Council Vacancy   
 

C. SUBJECT: Participation in the San Joaquin Valley Water Infrastructure Authority Through 
Financial Contribution (MR) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt resolution approving financial 
participation in the San Joaquin Valley Water Infrastructure Authority and authorize 
payment to the Authority. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report – SJVWIA/Agreement 
 

5. CITY MANAGER/STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 
 

6. MAYOR/COUNCIL REPORTS 
 

A. Chamber of Commerce Board Installation – Thursday, April 21, 6 p.m., La Ramada 
B. Almond Festival, Saturday, April 30, 11 a.m. – 3 p.m., Kerckhoff Park 
 

7. CLOSED SESSION 
 

8. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
Agenda packet is available for review 72 hours prior to the meeting at the city clerk’s office and on the 
city website. Items received at the meeting will be available for review at the city clerk’s office. 
 
In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act (ADA), if you need special assistance to 
participate at this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (559) 846-9380. Notification of 48 hours 
prior to the meeting will enable the City Clerk to make reasonable arrangement to ensure accessibility 
to this meeting. Pursuant to the ADA, the meeting room is accessible to the physically handicapped. 

4



MINUTES 
KERMAN CITY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING 
Kerman City Hall 

850 S. Madera Avenue 
Wednesday, April 6, 2016 

6:30 PM 
 

Stephen B. Hill – Mayor 
Gary Yep – Mayor Pro Tem 
Rhonda Armstrong – Council Member 
Nathan Fox – Council Member 
Bill Nijjer – Council Member 

 
Present: Mayor Pro Tem Gary Yep (GY), Rhonda Armstrong (RA), Fox (NF),  
Absent: Mayor Hill (SH), Nijjer (BN) 
Also Present: City Manager Kunkel, City Attorney Cantú, Chief of Police, 
Community Services Director, Finance Director, Lieutenant 

Voting: Yes, No, 
Absent (Abstain or 
Recuse if needed) 

OPENING CEREMONIES  

• Welcome – Mayor Pro Tem Yep   

• Call to Order 6:38 p.m. 

• Roll Call All present except 
SH/BN 

• Invocation  

• Pledge of Allegiance – City Clerk   

AGENDA APPROVAL/ADDITIONS/DELETIONS Approved RA/NF 
table 4.A to 5/18, 
move 1.A to after 
Item 6  
(3-0-2) SH/BN 
Approved 
w/changes NF/RA  
(3-0-2) SH/BN 

1. PRESENTATIONS/CEREMONIAL MATTERS  

A. Presentation to Nathan Fox Service on the City Council (SH) Moved to after 
Item 6 

REQUEST TO ADDRESS COUNCIL Daniel Babshoff 

2. CONSENT CALENDAR Approved RA/NF 
(3-0-2) SH/BN 

A. SUBJECT: Minutes  

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve minutes as presented.  

B. SUBJECT: Payroll  

Report: 2/28 - 03/12/2016: $153,751.16; Retro Pay & Other: $1,622.83; 
OT: $1,125.89; Standby: $1,319.27; Comp Time Earned: 35.25      

 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve payroll as presented.  

5



 
C. SUBJECT: Warrants  Nos 8290-8397: $265,175.19  

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve warrants and electronic bank 
transfers as presented. (Pursuant to Government Code 37208) 

 

D. SUBJECT: Initiation of Proceedings for the Annual Levy of Assessments for 
Landscape and Lighting District No. 1 (JJ) 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt resolution to initiate 
proceedings for the annual levy of assessments for Landscape and Lighting 
District No. 1 and authorize the City Engineer to file his annual report.     

Res 12-13 

3. PUBLIC HEARINGS  

A. SUBJECT: Public Hearing for General Plan Amendment GPA 16- 01, Making 
Findings to Adopt the City of Kerman 2015-2023 Multi-Jurisdictional 
Housing Element, Initial Study and Mitigated Negative Declaration as 
Adequate Environmental document for the project (OP) 

Opened PH 
Chelsey Payne 
Davis Slajchert 
Daniel Babshoff 
Closed PH 
Approved NF/RA 
(3-0-2) SH/BN 

RECOMMENDATION: Council open public hearing, receive public 
comments, close public hearing, adopt General Plan Amendment for the 
City of Kerman 2015-2023 Multi-Jurisdictional Housing Element, Initial 
Study and Mitigated Negative Declaration as adequate environmental 
document for the project. 

 
 
Res 16-14 

4. DEPARTMENT REPORTS  

A. SUBJECT: Resolution Submitting to City Voters at Next Regular Election to 
be Held On November 8, 2016, a Ballot Measure to Adopt an Ordinance 
Approving a Three Quarter Cent (.75%) Retail Transactions and Use 
Special Tax for Capital Projects for Public Safety, Parks, and Downtown 
Revitalization and Introduction of Ordinance. (JK) 

Tabled to May 18 
mtg. 

B. SUBJECT: Request for Support from Kerman Relay for Life (MR) Approved RA/NF 
$500 (3-0-2) 
BN/SH 

RECOMMENDATION: Council direct staff  

C. SUBJECT: Proposed Utility Rate Changes for Fiscal Year 2016/2017 (TJ)  

RECOMMENDATION: Council review proposed utility rates and direct to 
staff to schedule public hearing for June 1, 2016 to consider proposed 
utility rate changes. 

Approved NF/RA 
(3-0-2) SH/BN 
 
7:25 p.m.  
BN arrived. 

6



 
D. SUBJECT: Council Appointment to the West County Solid Waste Planning 

Committee (MR) 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council by minute order appoint one principal, 
Council member and one additional alternate staff member to serve on 
the West County Solid Waste Planning Committee. 

Approved by MO 
Primary - BN 
Alternate - Ken 
Moore 
RA/NF (4-0-1) SH 

5. CITY MANAGER/STAFF COMMUNICATIONS  

6. MAYOR/COUNCIL REPORTS    

Item 1. A moved on Agenda under Item 6  

1. A Presentation to Nathan Fox Service on the City Council (SH) Plaque presented 
for Service to NF. 

7. CLOSED SESSION None 

8. ADJOURNMENT 7:45 p.m. RA/BN 
(4-0-1) SH 

 

 

 

MINUTES CERTIFICATION 

 
I,   MARCI REYES, City Clerk for the City of Kerman, do hereby declare under penalty of perjury that the 
above Minutes are a true depiction of all actions taken at the City Council meeting held on the first date 
above written at Kerman City Hall, 850 S. Madera Ave, Kerman, CA. 

         Date: April 7, 2016 
 
         ____________________ 
         Marci Reyes 
         City Clerk 
 

7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



CITY OF KERMAN
CD/Securities Portfolio
As of March 31, 2016 6/30/2015 6/30/2016 FY to Date

Interest Rate/ Opening Maturity Book Additions/ Book Interest 
Institution Account Number Trans. Date Date Date Balance (Deletions) Cashed In Balance Fair Value Paid
CD's:

Mercantile Bank of Michigan 615-030525-245 2.00% 1/21/11 7/21/15 150,000.00             (150,000.00)     -                   -                         1,487.67          

GE Money Bank 615-030525-245 1.50% 8/5/11 8/5/15 50,000.00               (50,000.00)       -                   -                         371.92             

Sallie Mae Bank 615-030525-245 1.10% 8/8/12 8/10/15 97,000.00               (97,000.00)       -                   534.96             

Safra National Bank 615-030525-245 0.70% 8/15/13 8/17/15 100,000.00             (100,000.00)     -                   -                         350.96             

Discover Bank Greenwood 615-030525-245 1.55% 9/14/11 9/14/15 99,000.00               (99,000.00)       -                   -                         773.56             

State Bank of India 615-030525-245 2.25% 9/29/10 9/29/15 100,000.00             (100,000.00)     -                   -                         1,134.25          

Lake City Bank 615-030525-245 0.55% 1/29/14 1/29/16 95,000.00               (95,000.00)       -                   -                         306.37             

Discover Bank Greenwood 615-030525-245 1.35% 2/1/12 2/1/16 51,000.00               (51,000.00)       -                   688.50             

Goldman Sachs Bank 615-030525-245 1.40% 2/1/12 2/1/16 48,000.00               (48,000.00)       -                   672.00             

Synovus Bank 615-030525-245 0.50% 3/17/14 3/17/16 100,000.00             (100,000.00)     -                   -                         501.37             

State Bank of India 615-030525-245 2.00% 8/12/11 8/12/16 47,000.00               47,000.00        47,242.05               940.00             

Medallion Bank 615-030525-245 1.00% 8/19/13 8/19/16 100,000.00             100,000.00       100,170.00             1,000.00          

Goldman Sachs Bank USA 615-030525-245 1.85% 8/31/11 8/31/16 200,000.00             200,000.00       201,050.00             3,710.14          

Ally Bank 615-030525-245 0.95% 10/2/14 10/11/16 100,000.00             100,000.00       100,190.00             476.30             

Capital One Bank Glen Allen VA 615-030525-245 1.00% 11/12/14 11/14/16 96,000.00               96,000.00        96,170.88               483.95             

Firstbank of Puerto Rico 615-030525-245 1.10% 1/25/13 1/25/17 53,000.00               53,000.00        53,222.60               437.68             

Firstbank of Puerto Rico 615-030525-245 0.90% 3/1/13 3/1/17 196,000.00             196,000.00       196,760.48             1,324.22          

Cit Salt Lake City UT 615-030525-245 0.90% 3/27/13 3/27/17 98,000.00               98,000.00        98,433.16               884.41             

Ge Capital Bank 615-030525-245 1.10% 5/8/14 5/16/17 248,000.00             248,000.00       248,786.16             1,375.21          

Cap One NA Mclean VA 615-030525-245 1.15% 7/22/15 7/24/17 -                          150,000.00       150,000.00       150,160.50             869.59             

American Express Centurion Bank 615-030525-245 1.70% 7/26/12 7/26/17 98,000.00               98,000.00        99,003.52               1,666.00          

Whitney Bank Gulfport MS 615-030525-245 1.20% 8/12/15 8/14/17 -                          50,000.00        50,000.00        50,124.00               302.47             

Sallie Mae Bank 615-030525-245 1.70% 8/22/12 8/22/17 150,000.00             150,000.00       151,773.00             2,550.00          

Ally Bank Midvale UT CD 615-030525-245 1.25% 9/17/15 9/18/17 -                          99,000.00        99,000.00        99,294.03               617.05             

1st Merchants Bank 615-030525-245 1.00% 3/21/14 9/21/17 96,000.00               96,000.00        96,505.92               962.63             

Third Federal Cleveland OH 615-030525-245 1.15% 2/21/14 11/21/17 99,000.00               99,000.00        99,668.25               1,138.50          

Capital One Bank Glen Allen VA 615-030525-245 1.25% 1/22/15 1/22/18 100,000.00             100,000.00       100,277.00             1,250.00          

BMO Harris BK Chicago IL 615-030525-245 1.20% 2/4/16 2/2/18 51,000.00        51,000.00        51,163.20               -                  

Bank of Baroda New York City NY 615-030525-245 1.25% 3/8/13 3/8/18 248,000.00             248,000.00       249,272.24             3,108.49          

Wells Fargo Bank in SD 615-030525-245 1.00% 3/28/13 3/29/18 248,000.00             (248,000.00)     -                   -                         1,861.70          

Wells Fargo Bank in SD 615-030525-245 1.10% 4/6/16 4/6/18 248,000.00       248,000.00       248,000.00             

Discover Greenwood DE 615-030525-245 1.15% 4/8/15 4/9/18 98,000.00               98,000.00        97,991.18               565.04             

Everbank CD Jacksonville FL 615-030525-245 1.10% 4/15/15 4/13/18 150,000.00             150,000.00       149,830.50             827.26             

Rollstone Bank Fitchburg MA 615-030525-245 1.10% 4/15/15 4/16/18 248,000.00             248,000.00       247,709.84             1,367.74          

American Express Centurion Bank 615-030525-245 1.15% 5/16/13 5/16/18 98,000.00               98,000.00        98,337.12               568.13             

Compass Bank 615-030525-245 1.70% 7/31/13 7/31/18 97,000.00               97,000.00        98,606.32               1,649.00          

American Express Salt Lake City Ut 615-030525-245 1.25% 8/14/14 8/14/18 98,000.00               98,000.00        98,763.42               1,568.00          

Franklin Synergy Bank 615-030525-245 1.10% 4/8/16 10/9/18 -                   -                         

Sallie Mae Bank Salt Lake City UT 615-030525-245 1.50% 1/27/16 1/28/19 95,000.00        95,000.00        95,868.30               -                  

Goldman Sachs New York NY 615-030525-245 1.45% 2/3/16 2/4/19 48,000.00        48,000.00        48,447.84               -                  

Comenity Bank Salt Lake City UT 615-030525-245 1.25% 3/21/16 3/21/19 100,000.00       100,000.00       100,142.00             

Third Federal Cleveland OH 615-030525-245 1.55% 3/26/15 3/26/19 98,000.00               98,000.00        99,185.80               1,523.16          

Barclays Bank 615-030525-245 1.90% 4/15/14 4/15/19 248,000.00             248,000.00       252,315.20             2,362.45          

BMW Salt Lake City UT 615-030525-245 1.95% 6/20/14 6/20/19 200,000.00             200,000.00       203,274.00             1,955.34          24



CITY OF KERMAN
CD/Securities Portfolio
As of March 31, 2016 6/30/2015 6/30/2016 FY to Date

Interest Rate/ Opening Maturity Book Additions/ Book Interest 
Institution Account Number Trans. Date Date Date Balance (Deletions) Cashed In Balance Fair Value Paid

ST Bank of India CD Chicago IL 615-030525-245 2.15% 8/18/15 8/19/19 100,000.00       100,000.00       101,880.00             1,083.84          

Discover Greenwood 615-030525-245 2.00% 9/30/15 9/30/19 100,000.00       100,000.00       101,625.00             997.26             

Cit Salt Lake City UT 615-030525-245 2.15% 11/13/14 11/13/19 100,000.00             100,000.00       101,968.00             1,083.84          

Synchrony Draper UT 615-030525-245 1.95% 3/13/15 3/13/20 150,000.00             150,000.00       151,737.00             2,933.01          

JP Morgan Chase Bank 615-030525-245 2.10% 3/31/15 3/31/20 98,000.00               (98,000.00)       -                   -                         1,550.55          

Comenity Bank Jumbo Formerly World F    615-030525-245 2.10% 6/10/15 6/10/20 200,000.00             200,000.00       199,592.00             3,060.82          

Amex Centurion Salt Lake City Ut 615-030525-245 2.30% 6/24/15 6/24/20 52,000.00               52,000.00        52,529.36               599.64             

Capital One Bank Glen Allen VA 615-030525-245 2.20% 6/24/15 6/24/20 46,000.00               46,000.00        46,469.66               507.39             

Capital One NA Mclean VA 615-030525-245 2.30% 8/12/15 8/12/20 -                          97,000.00        97,000.00        99,130.12               1,124.67          

Average Rate 1.46%
Subtotal - CD's 5,048,000.00          (98,000.00)       -                       4,950,000.00    4,982,669.65          57,107.04        

Pacific Mercantile Bank 80900343 0.95% 1/22/08 1/22/16 99,000.00               (99,000.00)       -                   (99,000.00)              377.39             

Local Agency Investment Fund
Beginning Balance 98-10-400 7/28/15 2,000,000.00    2,000,000.00    2,000,000.00          

Interest 9/30/15 1,137.86          1,137.86          1,137.86          

12/31/15 1,852.19          1,852.19          1,852.19          

Subtotal - LAIF -                          2,002,990.05    -                       2,002,990.05    2,000,000.00          2,990.05          

Central Valley Comm Bank CD

1.34 6/8/12 6/8/17 200,000.00             200,000.00       200,000.00             903.12             

Total CD and Local Agency Investments 5,347,000.00          1,805,990.05    -                       7,152,990.05    7,083,669.65          61,377.60        

Chandler Asset Management
Beginning Balance -                          -                   

(City of Kerman) 152,606.85             152,606.85       152,606.85             -                  
Interest -                   

-                   -                  
Chandler Ending Balance Total Chandler Investments 152,606.85             -                   -                       152,606.85       152,606.85             -                  

Central Valley Money Market Acct 015030960
Beginning Balance 3,606,160.43          3,606,160.43    
Interest 7/31/15 320.39             320.39             320.39             

8/31/15 103.27             103.27             103.27             
9/30/15 96.45               96.45               96.45              

10/31/15 59.98               59.98               59.98              
11/30/15 44.61               44.61               44.61              
12/31/15 43.00               43.00               43.00              
1/31/16 47.45               47.45               47.45              
2/29/16 63.35               63.35               63.35              
3/31/16 82.86               82.86               82.86              

-                   -                  
Transfers In/(Out) 7/7/15 (50,000.00)       (50,000.00)       

7/10/15 (50,000.00)       (50,000.00)       
7/14/15 (100,000.00)     (100,000.00)     
7/23/15 (150,000.00)     (150,000.00)     

To LAIF 7/28/15 (2,000,000.00)  (2,000,000.00)  
9/17/15 (250,000.00)     (250,000.00)     

25



CITY OF KERMAN
CD/Securities Portfolio
As of March 31, 2016 6/30/2015 6/30/2016 FY to Date

Interest Rate/ Opening Maturity Book Additions/ Book Interest 
Institution Account Number Trans. Date Date Date Balance (Deletions) Cashed In Balance Fair Value Paid

10/14/15 (100,000.00)     (100,000.00)     
11/12/15 (60,000.00)       (60,000.00)       
11/17/15 (200,000.00)     (200,000.00)     
12/10/15 250,000.00       250,000.00       
12/16/15 (150,000.00)     (150,000.00)     
12/22/15 (225,000.00)     (225,000.00)     
12/30/15 600,000.00       600,000.00       

1/5/16 (425,000.00)     (425,000.00)     
1/28/16 200,000.00       200,000.00       
2/18/16 400,000.00       400,000.00       
3/8/16 (100,000.00)     (100,000.00)     

-                   

3,606,160.43          (2,409,138.64)  -                       1,197,021.79    1,197,021.79          861.36             

Subtotal All City Investments 5,248,000.00          (98,000.00)       -                       5,150,000.00    5,182,669.65          58,010.16        

5,499,606.85          1,805,990.05    -                       7,305,596.90    7,236,276.50          61,377.60        
Market Value Adjustment (69,320.40)              

1,805,990.05    
1,805,990.05    

-                   

Total Investments

26



  
 City of Kerman 

“Where Community Comes First” 

   

 

 MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM  
 Stephen B. Hill Gary Yep  
 COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER  
 Rhonda Armstrong Bill Nijjer  Vacant 

 DEPARTMENT: PLANNING & 
DEVELOPMENT 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: APRIL 20, 2016 

 
To: 

 
Mayor and Council Members 

From: Olivia Pimentel, Planning Technician, David Brletic, Contract Planner 
Subject: Appeal of Denial of Conditional Use Permit #16-01, Oriental Massage Business  

RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends Council by motion adopt resolution denying the Planning Commission’s decision and granting 
the conditional use permit (CUP) #16-01, Oriental Massage Business located at 275 S. Madera Avenue in the 
General Commercial Zone District. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  
 
In November 2015, both the Planning Commission and City Council adopted two ordinances filed by City Planner, 
the first was a Zoning Ordinance Amendment to Chapter 17.48 of Title 17 of the Kerman Municipal Code to Require 
a Conditional Use Permit for Massage Establishments in the General Commercial Zone District. The second, was 
an ordinance that requires an approved Conditional Use Permit holder for a massage business to obtain a Massage 
Establishment Permit from the Kerman Police Department. The Police department is the final approval. 
 
The proposed ordinances were determined to be necessary in order to provide the City a more meaningful ability 
to regulate massage business establishments in the best interests of our community to the extent now allowable 
under state law (AB 1147). It is not the intent of these ordinances to cause any undue hardship on legitimate 
massage therapists businesses; but rather to mitigate any potential for any secondary effects in crime similar to 
what many other California cities have been experiencing. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
On March 14, 2016 the Planning Commission held a public hearing for a proposed oriental massage business 
establishment, applicant Mr. Xiao Hu, located at 275 S. Madera Avenue. 
 
The Planning Commission had much discussion on this matter. With this being the first of its kind in the City of 
Kerman, the Commission was not comfortable making a decision, without having enough information from the 
applicant regarding licensing requirements, etc.  
 
The Police Department had no objections to the massage business and stated that it would be processed according 
to the ordinance and regulated so that any potential concerns would be quickly mitigated. 
 
Staff explained that if the Commission determined to deny the conditional use permit a reason for denial was 
required.  
 

27



City Council Staff Report    Page 2 of 8 
Appeal of Denial of Conditional Use Permit (CUP) #16-01, Oriental Massage Business 
  

 

The Commission made a motion to deny based on insufficient information provided by the applicant. The motion 
died for lack of a second because there were conflicting views as to the proper procedural approach and therefore 
they decided not vote at all. A letter was submitted by the Planning Commission included as Attachment ‘B’. 
 
The applicant filed an appeal to the City Council by written notice to the City Clerk. (Attachment ‘A’) Notice was 
filed within the ten working days after the day on which the decision was made in accordance with the Kerman 
Municipal Ordinance Section 17.22.020 Notice of Appeal.  
 
A public notice was properly noticed in the local newspaper and sent to property owners within 300 feet in 
accordance with the noticing requirements of Chapter 17.10 Public Hearings. To date, the City Clerk has not 
received any correspondence voicing objections to the proposed business. 
 
Staff recognizes the position and concerns of the Planning Commission, however, staff feels confident that the 
regulations and standards that have been set forth in the passing of Ordinances gives the City the authority to 
monitor massage parlors and take necessary action if needed to verify compliance with City and state regulations. 
 
The City Council has the authority to decide whether to uphold, deny, or modify the Commission’s decision to deny 
a conditional use permit.  
 
FISCAL IMPACTS 
 
There is no anticipated fiscal impact; costs would be recovered through existing planning entitlement fees.  
 
Attachments:  
 

A. Notice of Appeal 
B. Planning Commission Letter 
C. Resolution  

28



City Council Staff Report    Page 3 of 8 
Appeal of Denial of Conditional Use Permit (CUP) #16-01, Oriental Massage Business 
  

 

Attachment ‘A’ 

29



City Council Staff Report    Page 4 of 8 
Appeal of Denial of Conditional Use Permit (CUP) #16-01, Oriental Massage Business 
  

 

  

30



City Council Staff Report    Page 5 of 8 
Appeal of Denial of Conditional Use Permit (CUP) #16-01, Oriental Massage Business 
  

 

 
Attachment ‘B’ 

 
  

31



City Council Staff Report    Page 6 of 8 
Appeal of Denial of Conditional Use Permit (CUP) #16-01, Oriental Massage Business 
  

 

Attachment ‘C’ 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 16-__ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN DENYING  
THE PLANNING COMMISSIONS DISAPPROVAL OF CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT #16-01 FOR  

ORIENTAL MASSAGE BUSINESS 275 S. MADERA AVENUE, KERMAN, CALIFORNIA AND APPROVING 
THE CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 

 
 WHEREAS, at a regular meeting of the Planning Commission of the City of Kerman (the “Planning 

Commission”) held a public hearing  on March 14, 2016, at 6:30 p.m., regarding Conditional Use Permit #16-01 for 
Oriental Massage Business at 275 S. Madera Avenue, Kerman, California; and 

 
WHEREAS, after the public hearing the Planning Commission deliberated and did not vote on the 

application regarding Conditional Use Permit#16-01; and 
 
WHEREAS, the non-vote has been deemed a denial of Conditional Use Permit #16-01; and 
 
WHEREAS, the applicant has filed a timely appeal in accordance with Kerman Municipal Code section 

17.22.020 Notice of Appeal and public notices have been sent to property owners within 300 feet and the local 
newspaper; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City of Kerman recognizes that massage is a valid professional field offering the public 

health and therapeutic services; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is the intent of the Council to provide for the orderly regulation of massage establishments, 

therapists, and practitioners in the interest of the public health, safety, and welfare; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has carefully considered the proposed application for a conditional use permit, 

regulation of the location and manner in which businesses offering massages are to occur so as to prevent 
impacts on nearby residents and businesses. 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council, after considering all the evidence presented 
at the public hearing make a determination to decide to approve the conditional use permit as follows: 
 

1. The foregoing recitals are incorporated by reference as if fully set forth. 
 

2. Based on the evidence presented at the hearing, the following findings are hereby made: 
a. The proposed conditional use permit application is consistent and compatible with goals, policies and 

implementation programs set forth in the General Plan.  
b. The proposed conditional use permit application will not be detrimental to the public health, safety, or 

welfare, or materially injurious to the properties or improvements in the community so long as the 
conditions set forth below are met. 

c. The proposed conditional use permit application is statutorily exempt from the California Environmental 
Quality Act as set forth above. 

d. That the site for the proposed use is adequate in size, shape and location to accommodate the use as 
it relates to the district for which the use is proposed. 

32



City Council Staff Report    Page 7 of 8 
Appeal of Denial of Conditional Use Permit (CUP) #16-01, Oriental Massage Business 
  

 

3. Based on the foregoing, the City Council determines to deny the Planning Commission’s decision and 
hereby approves Conditional Use Permit No. 16-01 with the following conditions for the Oriental 
Massage Business at 275 S. Madera Avenue, Kerman, CA.  

a. The Conditional Use Permit shall not become effective until a Massage Establishment Permit is 
obtained from the Police Department. 

b. A copy of the Massage Establishment Permit issued by the Police Department shall be filed with the 
Planning Department.  

c. The Massage Establishment Permit requirements shall be maintained at all times. 
d. The Conditional Use Permit shall become null and void one (1) year following the effective date unless 

the approved use has been commenced.  
e. The Conditional Use Permit shall be deemed null and void if the Massage Establishment Permit expires 

or is revoked.  
f. The Conditional Use Permit shall be deemed null and void if there is a discontinuance of the use for a 

continuous period of one year. 
g. Parking: The Conditional Use Permit shall use the on-site parking provided by the existing commercial 

building complex. However, if parking becomes a concern for the neighborhood, staff included a 
condition that would allow the Planning Commission to review traffic and parking conditions and if 
warranted, provide additional conditions and/or even consider revocation of the permit. 

h. Hours of Operation: The Conditional Use Permit shall adhere to the approved hours of operation 
reviewed and approved by the Police Department.  

i. Traffic/Circulation: The Conditional Use Permit shall adhere to existing traffic/circulation patterns for the 
subject site. The main access to the parking lot is from San Joaquin and Stanislaus Avenues with 
access to the existing alley to the west. Staff looked at whether traffic generated from this business 
could potentially cause congestion, and determined that traffic patterns would not affect circulation or 
cause undue congestions. The subject site is accessed through a series of local roads that are 
adequate for safe traffic movements to and from the site. 

j. Noise: The Conditional Use Permit for the Oriental Massage Business use is proposed to be located 
within a commercial area. The proposed use would primarily be conducted inside the building with little 
to no activity beyond arrival and departure of members. Therefore, staff does not anticipate any 
significant noise impacts upon the surrounding area. If there becomes a concern regarding noise, a 
condition has been added to allow for review of the permit by the Planning Division or, if needed, return 
to the Planning Commission for additional conditions or even possible revocation of the permit.  

k. Signage: None is proposed as part of this application; however, any signage would be required to be 
consistent with the Sign Ordinance and Sign Design Guidelines, and would be submitted to the 
Planning and Development Services Department for review and permitting prior to installation. 

l. Public Utilities and Services: The existing building is currently connected to existing sewer and water 
services. Prior to occupancy, a fire inspection will be required, if required by the Fire Department. 

m. “Any conditions in the Massage Establishment Permit that are stricter than these conditions shall 
supersede these conditions.” 

 
 

33



City Council Staff Report    Page 8 of 8 
Appeal of Denial of Conditional Use Permit (CUP) #16-01, Oriental Massage Business 
  

 

The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Kerman 
held on April 20, 2016 with the following vote: 
 
  AYES: 
  NOES: 
  ABSENT: 
  ABSTAIN: 
 
The foregoing resolution is hereby approved. 
         ___________________________ 

Stephen B. Hill 
Mayor 

 
Attest: 
 
___________________________ 
Marci Reyes 
City Clerk 

34



    
City of Kerman 

A Place Where “Community Comes First” 
  

   

MAYOR                          PRO-TEM 
Stephen B. Hill               Gary K. Yep 

COUNCIL MEMBER     COUNCIL MEMBER     COUNCIL MEMBER    
Rhonda Armstrong         Bill Nijjer                        Vacant 

DEPARTMENT: PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MEETING DATE: APRIL 20, 2016 

   
To: Mayor and Council 
From: Olivia Pimentel, Planning Technician, David Brletic, Contract Planner 
Subject: Request by Mr. Mackey Puckett for Consideration of Sales Pass-Through Agreement 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Council provide direction to staff as to whether or not the City Council would be willing to consider an 
agreement. Alternatively, staff could be directed to review the generic concept of Sales Pass-Through 
Agreement and develop criteria and a policy for consideration by the Council before presenting specific 
agreements. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  
 
On January 20, 2016, Mr. Mackey Puckett presented a letter to the City Council requesting the waiver of draft 
conditions No. 32 and No. 60 for the development of his tractor sales business and auto parts store located on 
Commerce Way. Because the letter was presented during public comment, the City Council could not take 
action on the request, but directed staff to schedule Mr. Puckett’s request for review and to present the City 
Council with options for these conditions. 
 
Staff met with Mr. Puckett and discussed the options listed below: 
 
Draft Condition No. 32 – Payment of Development Impact Fees (DIF’s). 
 

Option 1: Payment of full DIFs prior to issuance of Building Permit. This is the normal process for 
development projects. In this scenario the City would receive development impact fees 
before the business is opened. 

Option 2: Payment of DIFs over five (5) years. The annual payments would be made from an interest 
bearing account containing the full cost of the DIFs. The account would be owned by 
applicant and list the City as co-owner. The implication of this is that the City would not 
receive development impact fees until five years after the project is completed. 

 
Draft Condition No. 60 – Construction of 9th Street.  

Option 1: Construction of 9th Street improvements with Site Plan Review No. 2015-05. In this scenario 
9th Street would be constructed to its full design standard before the business is opened.  

 
 This is the normal requirement for all development projects in Kerman. 

35



City Council Staff Report   Page 2 of 4 
Mackey Puckett, Request to enter into Sales Tax Pass-Thru Agreement  
 
 
Option 2: Construction of 9th Street improvements with development of the property to the east. The 

applicant would be required to deposit 150% of the estimated full cost of the 9th Street 
Improvements into an interest bearing account owned by the applicant and listing the City as 
co-owner. Funds deposited into account would be used for 9th street improvements with 
development of adjacent property. Funds remaining after 9th Street construction would be 
released back to applicant. In this scenario 9th Street would not be fully improved until the 
property to the east develops. This could be a long period of time. 

 
Option 3: Sales Tax Pass-Through for construction of 9th street improvements with Site Plan Review 

No. 2015-05. City would agree to sales tax pass-through for 5-years. Annual sales tax pass-
though could not exceed 20% of 9th Street improvements. The five (5) year total of the sales 
tax pass-through could not exceed the full cost of the 9th Street improvements. This option is 
contingent on review of applicant’s annual sales tax generation. The implication of this option 
is that 9th Street could be constructed after 5 years of the business being in operation, with 
funding provided by sales taxes generated by the business. It should be noted that these 
sales taxes would not be available for other uses by the City. 

Following review of the options listed above, Mr. Puckett indicated that he would like to request a Sales Tax 
Pass-Thru Agreement (Option 3) that would pay the Development Impact Fees over a five (5) year period and 
reimburse the project for construction of 9th Street. Table 1 shows an estimate of current taxable sales and 
sales tax generated by Mr. Puckett’s business, and an estimate of the potential increase to taxable sales and 
sales tax. Table 2 shows the estimated cost for Development Impact Fees and construction of 9th Street. Table 
3 shows a proposed five (5) year schedule of payment of Development Impact Fees from anticipated sales tax 
revenue and reimbursement of construction cost for 9 Street.  

Table 1 
 

Site Plan Review No. 15-05 – Macky Puckett 
Potential Impact on Sales Tax and Property Tax Revenue 

 
TAXABLE SALES SALES TAX TO CITY 

Current Taxable Sales   Current Sales Tax   
Napa Part Store Sales  $780,000 Napa Parts Store Sales  $7,800 
Potential Taxable Sales 
Increase of Tractor Sales 
business 

  Potential Sales Tax Increase   

Tractor Service & Sales  $6,038,000 Tractor Service & Sales  $60,380 
ASSESSABLE PROPERTY PROPERTY TAX TO CITY 

Current Assessed Value   Current Property Tax   
Vacant Land  $225,000 Vacant Land  $23 
Potential Assessed Value 
after Development 

  Potential Property Tax   

Land  $225,000 Land  $23 
Improvements  $1,200,000 Improvements  $120 

 

36



City Council Staff Report   Page 3 of 4 
Mackey Puckett, Request to enter into Sales Tax Pass-Thru Agreement  
 

 
Table 2 

 
Cost for Development Impact Fees and Cost Estimate for 9th Street Improvements 
 

Development Impact Fees $92,000 
Estimated Cost for 9th Street Improvements $75,000 

Total $167,000 
 

 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES 
 
Prior to any agreement, the City of Kerman will need to verify the current gross sales and evaluation of the 
potential increase in sales. The City of Kerman will also need to thoroughly examine the impact on sales tax 
from the potential sales increase." 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
If the City of Kerman enters into a sales tax pass-thru agreement, the fiscal impact would be a reduced 
increase in the anticipated sales tax from the project for five (5) years, followed by the full increase in sales tax 
anticipated from the project. Table 3 lists an estimated increase in sales tax and shows the portion that would 
go towards payment of Development Impact Fees and the portion that would be retained by the City. 

 
Table 3 

 
Deferral of DIFs and Reimbursement for Construction of 9th Street Improvements 

Sales Tax Pass-Thru for 5-Years, Pays for Deferred DIFs 
And Reimbursement for Construction of 9th Street Improvements 

 
Five (5) Year Schedule Total Taxes 

Generated 
Sales Tax Pass-Thru 

to Applicant 
Sales Tax Retained 

by City 
Year 1 $60,380 $33,400 $26,980 
Year 2 $60,380 $33,400 $26,980 
Year 3 $60,380 $33,400 $26,980 
Year 4 $60,380 $33,400 $26,980 
Year 5 $60,380 $33,400 $26,980 
Total $301,900 $167,000 $134,900 

 
DISCUSSION 
 
Approval of Mr. Puckett’s request would be precedent-setting. The City of Kerman has not used sales tax 
pass-thru with previous projects. It’s entirely possible that if approved, other developers would come forward 
with similar requests for deferrals, waivers, reductions of fees and also improvements. Staff recommends 
developing criteria for when use of sales tax pass-thru is appropriate. Proposed criteria should be based on 
quantifiable positive sales tax, property tax, or job creation associated with the project.  

37



City Council Staff Report   Page 4 of 4 
Mackey Puckett, Request to enter into Sales Tax Pass-Thru Agreement  
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
Council’s direction to proceed is not binding. Any decision by Council is subject to a public hearing. Staff would 
need to conduct a due diligence review on the numbers and an agreement would need to be prepared. 
Because the business would not open immediately, the agreement’s term may need to be revised from five 
years. If Council directs staff to proceed, a public hearing will be set once the details of an agreement are 
established by the City and Mackey. 

38



 
 

 City of Kerman 

“Community Comes First” 
  

   

 

MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM  
Stephen B. Hill Gary Yep  
COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER  
Rhonda Armstrong Bill Nijjer Vacant 

DEPARTMENT: CITY CLERK 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: APRIL 20, 2016

  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Marci Reyes, City Clerk 
Subject: Appointment to Fill Vacancy on Council 
 
RECOMMENDATION  
 
Council by motion adopt resolution making appointment to fill vacancy on the Council created by the resignation 
of Nathan Fox. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  
 
On March 3, 2016, Council Member Nathan Fox submitted his letter of resignation effective April 8, 2016 from the 
City Council. This created a vacancy on the Council, which the remaining members of the Council may fill by 
appointment or by calling for a special election within 60 days from the effective date of the resignation. 
 
DISCUSSION  
 
At the March 16, 2016 meeting, Council agreed to appoint a new Council Member to serve Mr. Fox’s unexpired 
term until December 7, 2016, as opposed to calling an election which would mean that the Council would have 
only 4 members until the election results are known in early December, 2016. Council adopted Resolution No. 16-
12 setting forth the process for appointment. 
 
The announcement for the vacancies as required by Government Code §1780, the notice was posted for at least 
15 days in 3 or more conspicuous locations in the City; published in the Kerman News and posted on the City 
website from March 23 with a deadline of April 13, 2016 at 4:00 p.m. 
 
Three applications for the vacant seat were received by the April 13, 2016 deadline from Kevin W. Nehring, Jack 
Sidhu and Paul Toste. Applications are included as Attachment ‘A’. 
 
Applicants were invited to attend the meeting, introduce themselves, state briefly, why they are seeking 
appointment to the Council and answer any questions the Council may have.  
 
Council will make appointment by open ballot.  
 
The newly appointed Council Member will be sworn-in and take their seat at the dais. Or Council may choose to 
swear-in at the next regularly scheduled meeting. 

39



City Council Staff Report   Page 2 of 10 
Resolution Approving Appointment to Fill Vacancy on Council 
 

 
New Council member will fill the unexpired term ending December 7, 2016. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
 
Appointment to fill the vacancy will have almost no fiscal impact. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING  
 
None is required. 
 
Attachments: 
 

A. Council Applications 
B. Resolution 

  

40



City Council Staff Report   Page 3 of 10 
Resolution Approving Appointment to Fill Vacancy on Council 
 

Attachment ‘A’ 
 
  

41



City Council Staff Report   Page 4 of 10 
Resolution Approving Appointment to Fill Vacancy on Council 
 
 

 
 
  

42



City Council Staff Report   Page 5 of 10 
Resolution Approving Appointment to Fill Vacancy on Council 
 
  

43



City Council Staff Report   Page 6 of 10 
Resolution Approving Appointment to Fill Vacancy on Council 
 
  

44



City Council Staff Report   Page 7 of 10 
Resolution Approving Appointment to Fill Vacancy on Council 
 
  

45



City Council Staff Report   Page 8 of 10 
Resolution Approving Appointment to Fill Vacancy on Council 
 
  

46



City Council Staff Report   Page 9 of 10 
Resolution Approving Appointment to Fill Vacancy on Council 
 
  

47



City Council Staff Report   Page 10 of 10 
Resolution Approving Appointment to Fill Vacancy on Council 
 

Attachment ‘B’ 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 16-___ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN 
MAKING AN APPOINTMENT TO FILL A VACANCY ON THE CTY COUNCIL 

 
 WHEREAS, Council Member Nathan Fox submitted his letter of resignation as a member of the City Council to the 
City Clerk on March 3, 2016 with an effective date of April 13, 2016; and  
 
 WHEREAS, Government Code Section 36512 in pertinent part specifies that: 
 

(b) If a vacancy occurs in an elective office provided for in this chapter, the council shall, 
within 60 days from the commencement of the vacancy, either fill the vacancy by 
appointment or call a special election to fill the vacancy. The special election shall be held 
on the next regularly established election date not less than 114 days from the call of the 
special election. A person appointed or elected to fill a vacancy holds office for the 
unexpired term of the former incumbent. 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council approved a process for filling of the vacancy; and  
 
 WHEREAS, as a result of that process three applications were received; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council in a regular Council meeting considered the applications, heard from the applicants, 
and received public comment. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN DOES RESOLVE as follows: 
 

1. The foregoing recitals are incorporated by reference. 

2. The Council appoints _______________________ to the City Council to fill Mr. Fox’s unexpired term 
through December 7, 2016. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the City Manager and City Staff are authorized and directed to take such actions as 
may be necessary or convenient to give effect to the foregoing action. 
 
The foregoing resolution was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Kerman held on the 20th day 
of April 2014, and passed at said regular meeting by the following votes: 
 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

 
The foregoing resolution is hereby adopted. 
 

 ______________________________ 
 Stephen B. Hill 
ATTEST: Mayor 
 
_____________________________ 
Marci Reyes 
City Clerk 

48



 
 City of Kerman 

“Where Community Comes First” 
 

   

 

MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM  
Stephen B. Hill Gary Yep  
COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER  
Rhonda Armstrong  Vacant Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: CITY CLERK 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: APRIL 20, 2016 

  
TO: Mayor and City Council 
FROM: Marci Reyes, City Clerk 
SUBJECT: Participation in the San Joaquin Valley Water Infrastructure Authority through financial contribution. 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
Council by motion adopt resolution approving financial participation in the San Joaquin Valley Water Infrastructure 
Authority and authorize payment to the Authority. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  
 
A joint powers authority was created by an agreement made and entered into on November 17, 2015 among the 
counties of Fresno, Kings, Madera, Merced and Tulare, two City Parties, two Water Agencies and a Tribal Party. 
(Attachment ‘C’) 
 
The parties desired to create a joint powers agency that will solicit grants under the competitive process established 
by the State of California pursuant to the Water Quality, Supply and Infrastructure Improvement Act of 2014 or any 
similar state or federal statutes or programs to fund water infrastructure improvement projects within the jurisdiction 
of some or all of the member Parties.  
 
Per the Council of Government’s request, approval of the attached resolution authorizes the City of Kerman’s financial 
participation in the amount of $736. The City has not been asked to become a formal party to the agreement creating 
the Authority. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
 
In accordance with agreement (Attachment ‘C’), Article 15 Responsibilities of Parties (c) As an initial contribution, upon 
execution of this Agreement by the relevant party, each party is to contribute the amount of $50,000. 
 
Fresno Council of Governments (COG) agreed the county and the cities in Fresno County would share the pro-rata 
cost on a voluntary basis. 
 
Each member of COG is to get approval from their respective City Council or administrative process to authorize their 
specific contribution. 
 
The pro-rated cost for Kerman is $736.00 as indicated on the spreadsheet listed as Attachment ‘A’. 
 
Attachments: 
 
 A. Spreadsheet 
 B. Resolution 
 C. Agreement  

49



City Council Staff Report    Page 2 of 4 
San Joaquin Valley Water Infrastructure Authority 
  
 

Attachment ‘A’ 
  

50



City Council Staff Report    Page 3 of 4 
San Joaquin Valley Water Infrastructure Authority 
  
 

Attachment ‘B’ 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 16-__ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN AUTHORIZING 
THE CITY TO PARTICIPATE IN A JOINT EXERCISE OF POWERS AGREEMENT WITH  

THE SAN JUAQUIN VALLEY WATER INFRASTRUCTURE AUTHORITY (SJVWIA) 
 

 RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Kerman, County of Fresno, California, that: 

WHEREAS, the City of Kerman is part of the Fresno County Council of Governments (COG); 
and  

WHEREAS, an agreement was made and entered into on November 17, 2015 among the 
counties of Fresno, Kings, Madera, Merced and Tulare, two City Parties, two Water Agencies and a Tribal 
Party; and 

WHEREAS, the parties created a joint powers agency that will solicit grants under the 
competitive process established by the State of California pursuant to the Water Quality, Supply and 
Infrastructure Improvement Act of 2014; and 

WHEREAS, as an initial contribution, upon execution of this Agreement by the relevant party, 
each party shall contribute the amount of $50,000; and 

WHEREAS, Fresno Council of Governments (COG) agreed the county and the cities in Fresno 
County would share the pro-rata cost on a voluntary basis for the cost of establishing; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Kermans pro-rata share is $736.00. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Kerman as follows: 

1. The foregoing recitals are incorporated by reference. 

2. The City hereby agrees to contribute is pro-rata share as requested by COG and. 

3. The City is authorized to pay the pro-rated cost of $736.00 for participation. 
 

The forgoing resolution was introduced and adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Kerman 
held on the 20th day of April, 2016, by the following vote to wit: 
 

51



City Council Staff Report    Page 4 of 4 
San Joaquin Valley Water Infrastructure Authority 
  
 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 
 

The foregoing resolution is hereby approved. 
 
 
              
        Stephen B. Hill  

 Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
     
Marci Reyes 
City Clerk 

52



53

mreyes
Typewritten Text

mreyes
Typewritten Text
		Exhibit 'C'



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81


	Agenda
	Minutes
	April 20, 2016

	Payroll
	Payroll/Overtime Report

	Warrants
	Accounts Payable

	Monthly Investment Report Ending March 31, 2016
	Investment Report 

	Appeal of Denial of Conditional Use Permit #16-01, Oriental Massage Business
	Staff Report - CUP Appeal

	Request by Mr. Mackey Puckett for Consideration of Sales Pass-Through Agreement
	Staff Report - Puckett Request

	Appointment to Fill Vacant Council Seat
	Staff Report - Council Vacancy

	Participation in the San Joaquin Valley Water Infrastructure Authority Through Financial Contribution
	Staff Report - SJVWIA
	SJVWIA - JPA


